
  

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE WYTHEVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
HELD IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS ON MONDAY, NOVEMBER 10, 2003, AT 7:00 P.M. 

 
Members present: Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline K. King, John W. Jones, Jr., William B. 

Weisiger, Charles G. Crockett 
 
Members absent: None  
 
Others present: Town Manager C. Wayne Sutherland, Jr., Assistant Town Manager 

Stephen A. Moore, Town Clerk Sharon P. Hackler, Town Attorney Robert 
P. Kaase, Patrol Officer Chris Irvin, Stephanie Porter-Nichols with 
Wytheville Enterprise 

 
RE:  CALL TO ORDER, QUORUM, INVOCATION, PLEDGE 
 
Mayor Crewe called the meeting to order and established that a quorum of Council members 
was present. The invocation was given by Councilman Jones followed by the Pledge of 
Allegiance led by Vice-Mayor King.  
 
RE:  CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Mayor Crewe presented the consent agenda consisting of the minutes of the regular meeting of 
October 27, 2003, and the request of the Virginia Cooperative Extension Wythe-Bland Master 
Gardeners for waiver of fees for use of the Community Center on May 8, 2004, for workshops 
and seminars. A motion was made by Councilman Weisiger and seconded by Councilman 
Crockett to approve the minutes of the regular meeting of October 27, 2003, and the request of 
the Virginia Cooperative Extension Wythe-Bland Master Gardeners for waiver of fees for use of 
the Community Center on May 8, 2004, for workshops and seminars. Mayor Crewe inquired if 
there is any discussion on the motion. There being none, the motion was approved with the 
following voting in favor and there being no opposition: For: Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline 
K. King, John W. Jones, Jr., William B. Weisiger, Charles G. Crockett. Against: None. 
 
RE: CITIZENS’ PERIOD 
 
Mayor Crewe stated the next agenda item is Citizens’ Period. He noted there are no citizens 
present, and, therefore, he would proceed with the agenda.  
 
RE: OLD BUSINESS 
 
Under Old Business, Town Manager Sutherland reported the following: 
 
1. The Town has started its leaf collection program. The Town would like to remind citizens 

that putting the leaves out in the street poses problems. It creates a bad situation with 
people trying to pass on the streets, and the leaves wash into the drop inlets. Citizens 
need to ensure that when they put their leaves out to be picked up, they should be kept 
off the edge of the street as much as possible. The Town is almost finished with the leaf 
collection this year, and in a few more weeks, the Town will have all of the leaves 
collected. Next year, the Town is probably going to have to monitor the leaf collection 
more closely. Town Manager Sutherland advised that he has not talked to Town 
Attorney Kaase or anyone else about this, but he would suppose that people who are 
noncompliant could probably be charged with littering and inquired of Town Attorney 
Kaase if that is correct. Town Attorney Kaase advised that is correct and noted there is 
another ordinance that deals directly with vegetation in the roadway. Town Manager 
Sutherland advised that there are places, and noted that everyone has seen them, 
where there are probably 10 to 12 feet of pavement covered by leaves. Councilman 
Weisiger noted that he has seen where a lot of people have pulled their leaves out on 
the curb. Town Manager Sutherland summarized that he thinks this is something the 
Town is going to have to review in future years.  

 
2. Tomorrow, November 11, is a holiday, and the offices will be closed. Neither Council 

Committee will be meeting this week, and they will resume with their Committee 
meetings next week. The Budget and Finance Committee will meet on November 20, 
and the Public Works Committee will meet on November 21.  

 
3. The Veterans Day Ceremony will be held tomorrow, November 11, 2003, at 11:00 a.m. 

in Withers Park. 
 
 



  

RE:  BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
Vice-Mayor King, reporting for the Budget and Finance Committee, stated that at the last 
meeting, the Committee reported that there were several amendments to the Town’s Personnel 
Regulations they would like to offer for adoption. She noted these amendments to the Personnel 
Regulations will need to be considered in ordinance form, which will be taken up on the agenda 
later in the meeting. Vice-Mayor King advised that the Committee thought it might be helpful to, 
again, give an overview of the amendments and respond to any questions any member of 
Council may have. She stated the first change would be the inclusion of a revised definition of a  
“seasonal employee.” Vice-Mayor King noted that the revision here merely concerns the Town’s 
construction inspectors who may need to work in excess of 40 hours per week, but who may 
work 50 or less weeks per calendar year. She explained that the current definition precludes 
seasonal employees from working in excess of 40 hours per week, and this often causes 
problems during construction seasons. Vice-Mayor King inquired if any member of Council has 
any questions. There being none, she continued. Vice-Mayor King noted that the second 
revision within the Personnel Regulations requires every applicant for employment with the 
Town to be subject to a criminal history check. She stated this amendment also requires that the 
criminal history of all current employees, likewise, be checked. Vice-Mayor King advised that in 
addition, this section establishes the procedures to be followed for any existing employee who is 
charged or convicted of a crime. She indicated that finally, the revision in this section notes that 
all personnel files are confidential and shall not be released except by subpoena and/or order of 
a court. Vice-Mayor King stated the next revisions to the regulations involve employees who 
engage in a second job. She remarked that the essence of these revisions prohibits employees 
from working a second job while utilizing Town sick leave or family medical leave. Vice-Mayor 
King noted that the same section also identifies the members of the immediate family for whom 
family sick leave time can be used in the event of the death of an immediate family member. 
She stated this item comes up on the agenda later in the meeting. Vice-Mayor King noted it 
would be the recommendation of the Budget and Finance Committee that the rules be 
suspended and these amendments be adopted on a single reading of the ordinance.  
 
Vice-Mayor King also reported that a related item the Council will consider at this meeting will 
be the adoption of a policy concerning the background checks of volunteers. She noted that the 
regulations governing volunteers are not a part of the Town’s Personnel Regulations and can be 
adopted by the Council as a policy. Vice-Mayor King indicated that these proposed policies on 
volunteers are attached, and the Committee, likewise, recommends their adoption. A copy of 
the Budget and Finance Committee report is attached and made part of these minutes. 
(Attachment). 
  
 
RE: PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
Councilman Weisiger, reporting for the Public Works Committee, stated that the Town was 
contacted recently by a resident who lives at the intersection of Fisher Road and Pine Street 
who noted that there had been several serious accidents at that location and thought some 
additional traffic control measures were needed. He stated the Committee asked the Police 
Department for accident data for all intersections on Fisher Road and found that there had been 
a total of five accidents on Fisher Road, with one major accident occurring at Fisher Road and 
Pine Street, while two major accidents had occurred at Fisher Road and Spiller Street. 
Councilman Weisiger indicated that one solution the Committee has under consideration is 
creating a four-way stop situation at Fisher Road and Pine Street. He stated that without doubt, 
at every intersection where the Town has installed four-way stop signs, the number of accidents 
has declined. Councilman Weisiger noted, however, before proceeding with such an installation, 
the Committee thought it may be worthwhile to have the Police Department provide the 
Committee a report determining if the number of accidents along Fisher Road is excessive in 
terms of all other intersections in town. He remarked that the Committee should have this report 
within the next week and will make a recommendation to the Council on whether or not to 
proceed with creating this new four-way stop arrangement. Mayor Crewe indicated that the 
Council will await further information and a recommendation from the Committee. Town 
Manager Sutherland stated that he received today, but he has not had time to review it, from the 
Police Department a tabulation of this information. He noted the tabulation is interesting 
because the Police Department has identified every intersection where there has been a 
number of accidents, and noted this intersection really does not rank, but it is an interesting 
report, and the Committees will be looking at it next week. Councilman Crockett stated there 
may be other intersections that are in need. Councilman Weisiger indicated that there may be 
other intersections that need something worse than this intersection. Councilman Jones noted 
that the biggest problem on Fisher Road is motorists speeding. Councilman Weisiger advised 
that is correct. Councilman Jones stated Ms. Shirley McCormick had expressed an interest in 
this a number of months ago, and he mentioned to her that the Council was reviewing this. He 



  

noted the other place is where Vice-Mayor King used to live, and if a motorist is turning left 
coming off of Mountain View Drive, the cars coming over the hill can cause an accident. 
Councilman Weisiger stated that is correct. Councilman Jones indicated that possibly the 
Council may want to erect a sign stating, “Caution, Cars Entering Road From Left” or something 
similar, or noted the sign could state “Blind Entrance” or something comparable that may help to 
slow the traffic. Mr. Jones advised he is not advocating another four-way stop sign. 
 
Councilman Weisiger also reported that the Committee met, this week, with Executive Director 
Randy Martin of the Wytheville Redevelopment and Housing Authority. He noted that Mr. Martin 
provided the Public Works Committee with an overview of the Authority’s plans to construct new 
dwelling units on land they recently purchased on Cassell Road. Councilman Weisiger stated 
that Mr. Martin noted the Authority currently has 151 families on their waiting list who are 
seeking one and two-bedroom family units. He advised that Mr. Martin noted the project on 
Cassell Road would consist of the construction of eight one-bedroom apartments and twelve 
two-bedroom apartments. Councilman Weisiger explained that the one-bedroom units would be 
approximately 800 square feet and the two-bedroom units would be approximately 1,200 square 
feet. He advised that Mr. Martin also noted the one-bedroom units are to be located on a single 
level, and the two-bedroom units will be located on two floors with handicapped accessibility on 
the lower level. Councilman Weisiger stated that Mr. Martin also noted that 20 percent of the 
units will be totally accessible for handicapped residents. He remarked that Mr. Martin stated 
currently, the Authority intended that these would be wood frame structures with brick veneer 
exteriors and asphalt shingle roofing. Councilman Weisiger advised that Mr. Martin noted the 
Authority would be retaining an architectural firm to do planning for the project and would be 
approaching the Town Council in the near future requesting that the Town make application 
through the Community Development Block Grant program for grant funds to be used for site 
work and related items. He noted that Mr. Martin stated the application deadline for the grant 
funds would be March of 2004. Councilman Weisiger stated that Mr. Martin advised he would 
provide the Council additional information and would be seeking approval in the near future for 
the Town making the application for the grant funds. Councilman Crockett indicated there is one 
thing he would add that he found rather interesting. He noted he asked Mr. Martin about the 
lists, where he mentioned 151 families on the waiting list, and Mr. Martin advised that they 
screen those lists every three months, and if someone has found other housing, moved away, 
etc., the Authority takes them off the list, and, of course, they also add others to the list. 
Councilman Crockett advised it may be good to note that the list is current all of the time. He 
noted he thought the other Council members may find this interesting. A copy of the Public 
Works Committee report is attached and made part of these minutes. (Attachment). 
 
RE: APPOINTMENT – JOINT INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
 
Mayor Crewe stated the next agenda item is the consideration of an appointment to the Joint 
Industrial Development Authority to fill the expiring term of Mr. Tom Green whose term expires 
November 13, 2003. He advised that the Council can make the appointment at this meeting, 
and noted they have received an application, or they can wait. He advised that Mr. Green’s term 
expires November 13, 2003, and he is not eligible for reappointment. A motion was made by 
Councilman Jones and seconded by Councilman Weisiger to appoint William F. Snyder to the 
Joint Industrial Development Authority. Mayor Crewe inquired if Dr. Snyder is already a certified 
planning commission member. It was noted that is correct. Vice-Mayor King inquired if Dr. 
Snyder wished to serve on the Planning Commission and the Joint Industrial Development 
Authority. Councilman Jones stated that is correct, and advised that Dr. Snyder is certified as a 
planning commissioner. Mayor Crewe stated he thought Dr. Snyder was a certified planning 
commissioner. He inquired if there is any discussion on the motion. Councilman Jones 
remarked that he thinks Dr. Snyder was involved with this when he was President of the College 
because he knows that when businesses came in and there were questions, etc., he thinks that 
Dr. Snyder would sometimes be called upon to be present so this is not something with which 
he is not familiar. Mayor Crewe noted that is correct and Dr. Snyder has been part of the team 
previously. Town Manager Sutherland indicated he was thinking that Dr. Snyder has previously 
served on the Joint Industrial Development Authority. Mayor Crewe indicated that he also 
thought Dr. Snyder served on the Joint IDA. Councilman Crockett remarked that he, likewise, 
thinks Dr. Snyder served on the Joint Industrial Development Authority. Town Manager 
Sutherland noted he thinks at some point in the past, Dr. Snyder served on the Joint IDA, but he 
cannot recall exactly when. Mayor Crewe noted he agrees. Town Attorney Kaase pointed out 
that his application states he served earlier on the Joint IDA. Mayor Crewe inquired if there is 
any other discussion. There being none, the motion was approved with the following voting in 
favor and there being no opposition: For: Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline K. King, John W. 
Jones, Jr., William B. Weisiger, Charles G. Crockett. Against: None. 
 
RE: ORDINANCE NO. 1162 – PERSONNEL REGULATIONS 
 



  

Mayor Crewe presented Ordinance No. 1162, an ordinance amending and reenacting 
Ordinance No. 1028, generally known as Personnel Rules, Regulations, and Policies, so as to 
include revisions to various sections of the ordinance, on first reading. He noted this ordinance 
is for the four changes in the Personnel Ordinance that were recommended by the Budget and 
Finance Committee as set forth in their report earlier in the meeting. A motion was made by 
Vice-Mayor King and seconded by Councilman Jones to suspend the rules and adopt 
Ordinance No. 1162, an ordinance amending and reenacting Ordinance No. 1028, generally 
known as Personnel Rules, Regulations, and Policies, so as to include revisions to various 
sections of the ordinance on first and final reading. Mayor Crewe inquired if there is any 
discussion on the motion. There being none, the motion was approved with the following voting 
in favor and there being no opposition: 
 
FOR: Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline K. King, John W. Jones, Jr., William B. 

Weisiger, Charles G. Crockett 
 
AGAINST:  None 
 
ABSTENTIONS: None 
 
Ordinance No. 1162 was approved on first and final reading. Mayor Crewe advised that these 
amendments to the Personnel Ordinance are effective immediately. 
 
RE:  BACKGROUND CHECK POLICY FOR TOWN VOLUNTEERS 
 
Mayor Crewe stated the second part of the report from the Budget and Finance Committee was 
to change the regulations regarding the background check for volunteers. He explained that this 
is not in the Personnel Policy, but it is a policy that is set forth by the Council. Mayor Crewe 
indicated that the Council had this as part of the report from the Budget and Finance Committee 
with the recommendation that this policy be adopted immediately. A motion was made by Vice-
Mayor King and seconded by Councilman Jones to adopt the Background Check Policy for 
Town Volunteers. Mayor Crewe inquired if there is any discussion on the motion. Councilman 
Crockett stated that in the report, at the top of page 2, it addresses the question about 
suspension, etc., if someone is warranted, and noted that it mentions, “the Town Manager may 
determine a suspension is warranted and shall notify the volunteer in writing….” He explained 
that on the last page, it is the same thing where it states “Appeal,” and it notes, “may appeal 
such decision to the Town Manager if the volunteer believes the decision was based on 
inaccurate.…information.” Councilman Crockett stated he would hope this question would never 
arise that the Town would have to suspend someone, but his question deals with if the Town 
Manager suspends someone, how would they appeal it to the Town Manager. Councilman 
Crockett advised the other question is since there are a lot of attorneys who believe in legal 
suits, he would assume that the Town Manager, if a decision came up that would be somewhat 
questionable and it was unclear, would seek legal advice before making a decision as to a 
suspension and inquired if that is correct. Town Clerk Hackler explained that in Section II – 
Implementation, Subsection F, this deals with the volunteer if they are charged or convicted of a 
crime on the list after the Town has already procured their volunteer services, and they are 
already with the Town. She noted that in this situation, the Town Manager would be able to 
suspend the volunteer. She noted that Section VI – Appeal deals with a new volunteer who has 
not started working for the Town, and if the Town receives a bad background check on the 
volunteer, the Town will reject their services, and noted they have not started working for the 
town. Town Clerk Hackler advised that in this situation, the person requesting to volunteer 
would appeal this decision to the Town Manager. Town Manager Sutherland inquired if 
Councilman Crockett is suggesting that the policy should state something such as, “after 
consultation with legal counsel.” Councilman Crockett advised he would think it would be in 
Town Manager Sutherland’s best interest to confer with the attorney because some of the 
reasons for suspension, he thinks, would be quite obvious and there would probably never be 
any question about it, and as he has stated, the question may never arise. He reiterated that for 
the Town Manager’s protection, he thinks it would be well to add something to the policy that 
would state the Town Manager would confer with an attorney. Mayor Crewe inquired if 
Councilman Crockett is talking about this only on the suspension part of a volunteer already 
performing services, and this would be Section F. Councilman Crockett stated that is correct. 
Mayor Crewe noted this would be the only place where this insertion would be added. He 
advised what he thinks he is hearing is that on fifth line of the second page where it states, “the 
Town Manager may determine a suspension is warranted…,” what would fix what he thinks he 
is hearing Councilman Crockett state is after the word “may” to insert the words “after 
consultation with Town Attorney” and continue with “determine a suspension is warranted….” 
Councilman Crockett noted he thinks he would feel better with this type of wording, and he 
believes it would be in the best interest of the Town Manager as well. Mayor Crewe inquired of 
Town Attorney Kaase if this is acceptable. Town Attorney Kaase remarked that he does not 



  

know what the Council is proposing even needs to be in the policy. He advised he thinks the 
Town Manager faced with this sort of decision would be well served to have the Town Attorney’s 
opinion in his file to back up what he is doing. Town Attorney Kaase remarked that whether this 
is part of the policy or not, he does not think makes any difference. Mayor Crewe stated the 
difference would be if the Town Manager would consult the Town Attorney as opposed to being 
required to do so. Town Attorney Kaase remarked that he thinks when the Council starts making 
personnel decisions, whether they are for employees or for volunteers, the Council is probably 
well served to have this in their file at all times to back up the managerial decision. He remarked 
he thinks this is something the Town would want to consider as being the way they do things. 
Town Attorney Kaase advised as to whether the Council has it in their policy or not, he does not 
think makes any difference. He noted he thinks Town Manager Sutherland would want to 
consult with the Town Attorney, and then he can have something that is demonstrative that the 
Town has made its very best efforts when they dismiss someone or do not take someone on 
that it is defensible at a later point in time. Town Manager Sutherland remarked that since the 
Council is discussing these semantics, he thinks the language should be after the word 
“consultation” should be the words “with legal counsel” since the Town Attorney may not be 
available. Mayor Crewe noted he agrees. He noted the question is if the Council wants this in 
the policy as opposed to forcing the Town Manager to consult with the attorney. Councilman 
Crockett indicated that he thinks it would emphasize the Council’s point more, but he is certainly 
not going to argue the point with Town Attorney Kaase as to whether it is absolutely necessary 
because he thinks Town Manager Sutherland would certainly consult with the attorney in any 
case, but it would probably be beneficial to have this in the policy. Vice-Mayor King remarked 
that the Council is setting a policy for the future, and possibly at some point in time some of the 
current Council members may not be serving on the Council, and it may be good to include this 
language in the policy. Town Manager Sutherland indicated that he did not see anything wrong 
with adding this language, and it cannot be hurtful to add it. Mayor Crewe noted he will take this 
as a motion from Councilman Crockett that the Council amend the Background Check Policy for 
Town Volunteers to insert at the end of the fifth line of the second page in Section II, Subsection 
F, the words “after consultation with legal counsel.” The motion was seconded by Vice-Mayor 
King. Mayor Crewe inquired if there is any discussion on the motion to amend the policy. There 
being none, the motion was approved with the following voting in favor and there being no 
opposition: For: Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline K. King, John W. Jones, Jr., William B. 
Weisiger, Charles G. Crockett. Against: None. Mayor Crewe noted the policy is now amended. 
He inquired if there is any discussion on the entire policy as now amended. There being none, 
Mayor Crewe advised he would assume the Council is now ready to vote on the Background 
Check Policy for Town Volunteers as now amended. The motion was approved with the 
following voting in favor and there being no opposition: For: Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline 
K. King, John W. Jones, Jr., William B. Weisiger, Charles G. Crockett. Against: None.  
 
RE: CERTIFICATES OF PUBLIC CONVENIENCE AND NECESSITY 
 
Mayor Crewe stated the next agenda item is setting a date for a public hearing to consider 
renewing the Certificates of Public Convenience and Necessity during 2004 for Blue and White 
Cab, Inc. for the operation of taxicabs and for Blue Ridge Medical Transport, Inc. and Guardian 
Ambulance Service for the operation of public vehicles. He advised that the Council can meet 
the publication requirements and schedule this public hearing for the December 8, 2003, 
meeting. Mayor Crewe inquired if there are any objections or issues about scheduling this for 
the December 8 meeting. There being none, it was the consensus of the Council to set a public 
hearing for the December 8, 2003, meeting to consider renewing the Certificates of Public 
Convenience and Necessity during 2004 for Blue and White Cab, Inc. for the operation of 
taxicabs and for Blue Ridge Medical Transport, Inc. and Guardian Ambulance Service for the 
operation of public vehicles.  
 
Councilman Crockett stated he has a question on this matter, but advised it does not deal with 
the public hearing. He noted if he looks over at the certificate of liability insurance, and noted 
that possibly there is a good reason for this, but Blue and White Cabs for the general liability 
insurance does not have any limits specified, and a combined limit of $350,000. He noted that 
the other two certificates of insurance both have listed general liability limits specified in “A” of 
$1 million, and noted the two policies are different, but they have limits on both of these for the 
general liability, and also, Guardian Ambulance has limits listed under “C – Workers’ 
Compensation.” He noted that the question could be answered when the public hearing is held, 
but he would be interested in knowing why those limits are not specified, and advised that there 
may be a good reason for it. Mayor Crewe remarked that he thinks the answer is that the type of 
policy that Blue and White Cabs purchased is a different type of policy than the other two 
companies, and they have what is generally called a single limit policy. He noted the way he 
would interpret this is if the Council looks at the Guardian Ambulance policy, for example, they 
have a $1 million per occurrence limit. Mayor Crewe explained that if there was an accident, the 
insurance company would not pay more than $1 million on that one accident no matter how 



  

many people were hurt. Mayor Crewe stated if the Council looks at Blue and White Cabs 
insurance policy, they have a $350,000 combined single limit, which means if there was one 
person hurt or 100 people hurt, $350,000 is all the insurance company would pay. He noted that 
he does not think, if he remembers correctly, and noted that Town Attorney Kaase remembers 
better than he, the Town’s ordinance requires the State law minimum which he believes is 
$100,000, but the Town tracks State law. Mayor Crewe explained that in other words, for a 
private automobile, the minimum limits policy in Virginia is $25,000 per person, and $50,000 per 
accident. He noted if the Town tracks this same language in this, $25,000/$50,000 would be the 
limit, but if it is a commercial vehicle, if he is recollecting correctly, it is a $100,000 minimum 
limit, which is what the State law requires, and this is what the Town requires. Mayor Crewe 
remarked that all of these policies meet the minimum limits, but they meet it in different 
fashions. He noted the Guardian Ambulance policy and the Blue Ridge Medical policy would 
pay more than the Blue and White Cabs policy because each of those companies have a $1 
million total limit. He noted it is $1 million per accident or $500,000 combined single limit, 
whereas Blue and White Cabs’ limit is lower, and it is only $350,000 total. Councilman Crockett 
stated he would assume the same company, Old Dominion in Pulaski, wrote both of the first 
two, and, apparently, there was a justification part and he was curious why there was a 
difference. Mayor Crewe pointed out he does not think there are many companies who write this 
kind of coverage. Town Manager Sutherland remarked that in reviewing the policies, Blue and 
White Cabs only has an automobile policy, and the Blue Ridge Medical Transport policy has 
general liability insurance, etc. Mayor Crewe stated that Blue Ridge Medical Transport has 
purchased all of their insurance at one place. He noted he is sure that Blue and White Cabs 
also has a workers’ compensation policy, but they do not have to tell the Council about it in 
order to obtain their Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity. Mayor Crewe stated he 
thinks what the Council is seeing on the Blue Ridge Medical policy is they bought all of their 
insurance in one place. He inquired of Councilman Crockett if this answered his question. 
Councilman Crockett stated he guessed this answers his question, as long as the one policy 
that Blue and White Cabs has is acceptable. He noted Mayor Crewe advised that one policy 
covers everything, such as Guardian Ambulance’s policy. Councilman Crockett reiterated that 
as long as Blue and White Cabs is properly insured, he would be a little curious to know where 
the workers’ compensation comes in or if that is a requirement for the cab company and for Blue 
Ridge Medical Transport. Mayor Crewe explained that the workers’ compensation coverage is 
not a requirement for these companies under the Town’s ordinance, but advised that State law 
notes if a company has three or more employees, the company has to provide workers’ 
compensation, but it is not required under the Town’s ordinance at all. He advised the only part 
the Town requires is Part B, for example, on Guardian Ambulance’s policy, which is the 
automobile liability policy. Mayor Crewe continued that the Town does not require a general 
liability policy nor worker’s compensation. He reiterated that all the Town requires is the 
automobile liability policy, and if the coverage is compared, there is $1 million automobile 
insurance coverage by Blue Ridge Medical Transport; $350,000 automobile insurance coverage 
by Blue and White Cabs; and $500,000 automobile insurance coverage by Guardian 
Ambulance, and these are for the general liability automobile policy section. Councilman 
Crockett remarked he did not remember how much insurance coverage that Service Cab 
Company carried, but he knows the Council passed the Certificate every time it came before the 
them, so he would assume it was acceptable. Mayor Crewe reiterated that all the Town requires 
is a $100,000 liability policy, which is what the State law requires, and this is the minimum limit. 
He noted the Council will schedule this public hearing for the December 8, 2003, meeting.  
 
Vice-Mayor King stated she saw the operator of Blue and White Cabs the other day in 
Pampered Pooch, and he is looking for an office in Wytheville. Councilman Jones advised that 
he has seen the cabs all over town. Mayor Crewe noted it appears as though the cab company 
is busy.  
 
RE: ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mayor Crewe inquired if there is any further business to be discussed. There being none, a 
motion was duly made, seconded, and carried to adjourn the meeting (7:30 p.m.). 
 
 
 
            

 Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Mayor 
 
 
        
Sharon P. Hackler, CMC, Clerk of Council 
 
 
 



  

G:\COUNCIL\Minutes\2003\Council Minutes 111003.doc 

ronj
Back



 
 1 

  PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE REPORT  
 
 NOVEMBER 24, 2003 
 

1. Director of Public Safety Newberry requested our Committee to review the posting 

of Industry Road between Third Street and Chapman Road as a “no parking” zone. 

As you know, this portion of roadway is only 24 feet in width, and there are virtually 

no shoulders anywhere along this section. Recently, we have had difficulty with 

trucks from one of the industries parking in the roadway and blocking one lane of 

travel. This is a particularly bad situation at hours during the day when there are 

large volumes of traffic associated with children coming and going to Scott Memorial 

School. We have reviewed Mr. Newberry’s recommendation and agree that this 

section of roadway should be posted for “no parking.” We would note that all the 

businesses and industries along Industry Road have sufficient off street parking that 

there is no necessity to utilize the roadway for parking. Unless the Council 

disagrees, we will ask the Public Works Department to erect the appropriate signs. 

 

2. At our Committee meeting on Friday, we heard a report from Captain Rick Arnold on 

statistical information he had gathered with regard to the number of wrecks that had 

occurred at intersections throughout town. As you may recall, at our last meeting, 

we were discussing the need for the installation of a four-way stop sign at the 

intersection of Fisher Road and Pine Street. According to the record of data 

provided by the Police Department, there has only been one major accident there 

over the past two years. While this is bad, there are several intersections in town 



 
 2 

where there have been eighteen accidents per year. We think the information 

provided by the Police Department is worthy of additional review and do not think 

that we should proceed with any other traffic control devices until we have had the 

opportunity to more thoroughly review the report from the Police Department. 

 

 

                  
                   William B. Weisiger 

 
 
                                           

             Charles G. Crockett     
 
 
H:\COUNCIL\PWCOMMIT.RPT\2003\PWNOV24.doc 



Below is a list of all accidents that have occurred in the Town of Wytheville from 11/01/01 
thru 10/31/03 (2 years).  These are only major accidents that have occurred at the listed 
intersections. If you desire more information or want me to figure in the minor accidents just 
let me know. 
 
(322 Total Accidents) 
 
N. 4th St. and Ridge Road    17 
E. Main St. and Withers Lane   15 
West Lee Highway (straight stretch)  14 
E. Main St. and Lithia Road   11 
E. Main St. at Chapman/Cassell Roads  11 
Peppers Ferry Rd at Exit 41   10 
Grayson Rd. at W. Sprig/R.R.Ave/Old Stage 10 
12th and Monroe St.     9 
4th St. and W. Main St.     9 
E. Main St. and Marshall St.    8 
N. 4th St. and W. Monroe St.    8 
N. 4th St. and W. Fulton St.    6 
N. 4th St. and W. Spiller St.    6 
N. 12th St. and W. Pine St.     6 
N. 4th St. and Tazewell St.     5 
N. 4th St. and Holston St.     5 
Peppers Ferry Rd. and Cove Rd.    5 
Main St. at Church St./Tazewell St.   5 
S. 6th St. and W. Spring St.    5   (165 Total) 
 
Intersections with four accidents: (28) 
S. 11th St. and E. Monroe St.    N. 4th St. and W. Pine St. 
Tazewell St. and Pine St.     S. 4th St. and W. Spring St. 
Chapman Rd. and Malin St.    N. 4th St. and Commonwealth Dr. 
W. Lee Highway and Sherwood Forest Dr. 
 
Intersections with three accidents: (36) 
N. 4th St. and Stafford-Umberger Dr.   W. Main St. and 8th St. 
E. Main St. and 11th St.     E. Main St. and 7th St. 
E. Main St. and Withers Rd.    W. Main St. and 12th. 
E. Main St. and Malin Dr.     E. Main St. and 5th St. 
Tazewell St. and Valley St.     N. 4th St. and Virginia Dr. 
N. 4th St. and W. North St.     N. 4th St. and Exit 70 
 
Intersections with two accidents: (36) 
N. 4th St. and Fairview R.     S. 11th St. and Withers Rd. 
E. Main St. (no intersections)    W. Main St. (no intersections) 
W. Lee Highway and Spiller St.    Withers Rd. and Church St. 
E. Main St. and 3rd St.     N. 4th St. and Meadow Run Dr. 




